### EXHIBIT C

## BYLAWS OF LOST RIVER PRESERVE PROPERTY OWNERS' ASSOCIATION, INC.

A corporation not for profit under the Laws of the State of Florida

### Article I -Identity

Association by these Bylaws, a corporation not for profit under the Laws of the State of Florida, the Articles of Incorporation of which were filed in the office of the Secretary of State on, 2002.
Section 2. The office of the Association shall be at 3939 Cockroach Bay Road, Ruskin, Florida 33570.
Section 3. The Association shall operate upon the calendar year beginning on the first day of January and ending on the 31st day of December of each year. The Board of Directors is expressly authorized to change from a calendar year basis to a fiscal year basis whenever deemed expedient and for the best interests of the Association.
Section 4. The seal of the Association shall bear the name of the Association, the word "Florida," and the words "corporation not for profit" and the year of incorporation, an impression of which is as follows:

### Articles II - Definitions

Section 1. All words, phrases, names and terms used in these Bylaws, the Declaration and the Articles of Incorporation of the Association shall have the same meaning and be used and defined the same as they are in the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions of Lost River Preserve.

## Article III - The Association

Section 1. <u>Members.</u> The members of the Association shall be those individuals or entities as so defined in the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions and the Articles of Incorporation, and shall be any legal entity capable of ownership of real property under the Laws of Florida.

- Section 2. <u>Place of Meetings</u>. Meetings of the membership shall be held at the principal office or place of business of the Association, or at such other suitable place convenient to the membership as may be designated by the Board of Directors.
- Section 3. <u>Annual Meetings.</u> The first annual meeting of the Association shall be held one (1) year from the date of incorporation of the Association. Thereafter the annual meetings of the Association shall be held on the same day of the month of each succeeding year. If the day so designated falls on a legal holiday, then the meeting shall be held on the first secular day thereafter. At the annual meeting the members may transact such business of the Association as may properly come before them. The time of all meetings shall be set by the directors and the directors, by majority vote, may change the date of the annual meeting.
- Section 4. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the members may be called by the President and shall be called by the President or Secretary at the request in writing of the Board of Directors or at the request in writing of members who are entitled to vote ten percent (10%) of all of the total voting interest of the Association. Such requests shall state the purpose or purposes of the proposed meeting.
- Section 5. Notice of Meetings. It shall be the duty of the Secretary to mail a notice of each annual or special meeting, stating the purpose thereof as well as the time and place where it is to be held, to each member of record, at his address as it appears on the membership books of the Association, and if no such address appears, at his last known place of address, at least fifteen (15) days for an annual meeting and ten (10) days for a special meeting, prior to such meeting. The mailing of a notice in the manner provided in this section shall be considered notice served. The notice shall specify the day, place and hour of the meeting, and if a special meeting, the purpose.
- Section 6. <u>Minutes</u>. Minutes of all meetings shall be kept in a businesslike manner and be available for inspection by Lot owners and Board members at all reasonable times.
- Section 7. Quorum. The presence in person or by proxy at the meeting of members entitled to cast thirty-three and one-third percent (33-1/3%) of all votes, regardless of class of membership, shall constitute a quorum for any action required by the membership, except as otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions or these Bylaws.
- Section 8. <u>Adjourned Meetings</u>. If any meeting of members cannot be organized because a quorum has not attended, the members who are present, either in person or by proxy, may adjourn the meeting to a time not later than ten (10) days from the time the original meeting was called, and hold the meeting adjourned, without additional notice, provided that a quorum can be obtained for such meeting.
- Section 9. <u>Voting</u>. At every meeting of the members, the owner or owners of each unit, or combination of units, either in person or by proxy, shall have the right to cast one vote as set forth in the Declaration. The vote of the majority of those present, in person or by proxy, shall decide any question brought before such meeting, unless the question is one upon which, by

express provision of statute, or of the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions, or of the Articles of Incorporation, or of these Bylaws, a different vote is required, in which case such express provision shall govern and control. If a Lot is owned by more than one person, the person entitled to cast the vote for the Lot shall be designated by a certificate signed by all of the record owners of the Lot according to the roster of Lot owners and filed with the Secretary of the Association. If a Lot is owned by a corporation, the person entitled to cast the vote for the Lot shall be designated by a certificate signed by the president or vice president and attested by the secretary or assistant secretary of the corporation and filed with the Secretary of the Association. Those certificates shall be valid until revoked or until superseded by a subsequent certificate or until a change in the ownership of the Lot concerned. A certificate designating the person entitled to cast the vote for a Lot may be revoked by any owner of a share in the Lot. If a certificate designating the person entitled to cast the vote for a Lot is not on file, the vote of the owners shall not be considered in determining whether a quorum is present nor for any other purpose, except if the Lot is owned jointly by husband and wife. If a Lot is owned jointly by husband and wife, the following provisions are applicable:

- a. They may, but are not required, to designate a voting member;
- b. If they do not designate a voting member, and if both are present at a meeting and are unable to concur on a decision upon any subject requiring a vote, they shall lose the right to vote on the subject at that meeting;
- c. When they do not designate a voting member, and only one is present at a meeting, the person present may cast the Lots's vote;
- Section 10. <u>Proxies</u>. A member may appoint any other member, any owner of any Lot, the Developer, or the manager as a proxy. Any proxy must be filed with the secretary before the appointed time of each meeting.
- Section 11. Order of Business. The order of business at all annual or special meetings of the members shall be as follows:
  - a. Roll call.
  - b. Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice.
  - c. Reading of the minutes of preceding meeting.
  - d. Reports of officers
  - e. Reports of committees
  - f. Election of officers (if election is to be held).
  - g. Unfinished business.

### h. New business

### Article IV -Administration

## Section 1. Board of Directors.

- a. Number and Qualification. The affairs of the Association shall be governed by a Board of Directors. The number of directors which shall constitute the Board shall be not less than three (3) nor more than nine (9). The number of directors may be increased or decreased within the above limits by affirmative vote of a majority of the membership. All directors, except for the initial directors named in the Articles of Incorporation, shall either be members of the Association, or designees of the Developer. The Developer reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to remove and replace any of the initial directors or their replacements. Thereafter, the Directors shall be elected at the annual meeting of the owners by a majority vote. The initial Directors shall serve until their resignation or relinquishment of control of the Association by the Developer. No director, other than the Developer or its representatives, shall serve for more than two (2) consecutive three (3) year terms. After the Developer has relinquished control, there shall be a minimum of three (3) Directors elected, one third (1/3) for a one (1) year term, one third (1/3) for a term of two (2) years and the balance for a term of three (3) years, and at each annual meeting thereafter the members shall elect one (1) Director for a term of three (3) years.
- b. Removal. Directors, except for the Developer's representatives, may be removed for cause by an affirmative vote of a majority of the owners. The vacancy so created shall be filled by the members of the Association. No Director, other than the initial Directors named in the Articles of Incorporation, or their duly elected replacements, shall continue to serve on the Board if, during his term of office, his membership in the Association shall be terminated for any reason whatsoever.
- c. <u>Vacancies</u>. Except as to vacancies provided by removal of Directors by members, vacancies in the Board of Directors occurring between annual meetings of members shall be appointed by the remaining Directors.
- Section 2. <u>Powers and Duties</u>. The Board of Directors shall have the powers and duties necessary for the administration of the affairs of the Association, and may do all such acts and things as are not by the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation of the Association, or these Bylaws directed to be exercised and done by the members or officers. The powers and duties of the Board shall include, but not be limited to, the following:
- a. All powers and duties of the Association as set forth in the Articles of Incorporation of the Association, except as limited as above provided.
- b. To prepare and adopt an annual operating budget, which budget shall be sufficient in amount to pay for all necessary expenses and expenditures to be shared in common by the respective owners of units, and including a reasonable reserve for repairs, upkeep and replacement of the common area and for contingencies.

- c. To prepare a detailed report of the acts, accounts, and statements of income and expense for the previous year, and present same at the annual meeting of members,
- d. To determine who shall act as legal counsel for the Association whenever necessary.
  - e. To determine the depository for the funds of the Association.
- f. To acquire the necessary personnel needed for the maintenance, care, and upkeep of the Common Properties and Access Ways, and set the salaries or compensation of said personnel.
  - g. Assess and collect all assessments pursuant to the Declaration.
- h. Establishment of reserves or making assessments for betterments to the development property.
- i. Within sixty (60) days following the end of the fiscal year or calendar year of the Association, the Board of Directors shall mail or furnish by personal delivery to each owner of a Lot a complete financial report of actual receipts and expenditures for the previous twelve (12) months. The report shall show the beginning and ending cash balances and shall show the amounts of receipts by accounts and receipt classifications and shall show the amounts of expenses by accounts and expense classifications, including, if applicable, but not limited to the following:
  - (1) Cost for security;
  - (2) Professional and management fees and expenses;
  - (3) Taxes;
  - (4) Cost for recreation facilities;
  - (5) Expenses for refuse collection and utility services;
  - (6) Expenses for lawn care:
  - (7) Cost for building maintenance and repair;
  - (8) Insurance costs;
  - (9) Administrative and salary expenses; and
  - (10) General reserves, maintenance reserves and depreciation reserves.

The report, upon written request, shall be sent to holders, insurers or guarantors of any first mortgage on a Lot and, if required, the report shall be in the form of a financial statement certified by a corporate officer.

- j. The Board shall make available for inspection, during reasonable business hours or circumstances, to Lot owners and holders, insurers or guarantors of first mortgages current copies of the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions, the Bylaws and other rules concerning the operation of the Association, and the books, records and financial statements of the Association.
- Section 3. <u>Election of Directors</u>. Election to the Board of Directors shall be by secret written ballot. At such election the members or their proxies may cast, in respect to each vacancy, as many votes as they are entitled to exercise under the provisions of the Declaration. The persons receiving the largest number of votes shall be elected. Camulative voting is not permitted.
- Section 4. <u>Management Agent</u>. The Board of Directors may employ for the Association a management agent at a compensation established by the Board to perform such duties, services and powers as the Board shall authorize, including, but not limited to, the duties, services and powers listed in section 2 of this paragraph.
- Section 5. <u>Compensation</u>. No compensation shall be paid to directors for their services as directors. No remuneration shall be paid a Director for services performed by him for the Association in any other capacity, unless a resolution authorizing such remuneration shall have been unanimously adopted by the Board of Directors before the services are undertaken.
- Section 6. Organization Meeting. The first meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held within ten (10) days after the annual members' meeting, at such place as shall be fixed by the Board and no notice shall be necessary to the newly elected directors in order legally to constitute such meeting, providing all of the Board of Directors shall be present.
- Section 7. <u>Regular Meetings</u>. Regular meetings of the directors may be held at such time and place as shall be determined, from time to time, by a majority of the directors, but at least two such meetings shall be held during each fiscal year. Notice of regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be given -to each director, personally or by mail, telephone or telegraph, at least three days prior to the day named for such meeting.
- Section 8. <u>Special Meetings</u>. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the President on three days' notice to each director, given personally or by mail, telephone or telegraph, which notice shall state the time, place (as hereinabove provided) and purpose of the meeting. Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be called by the President and Secretary, in like manner and on like notice, on the written request of at least two directors.
- Section 9. <u>Notice of Meetings to Lot Owner</u>. Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be open to all Lot owners and notices of meetings shall be either hand delivered or mailed

by regular mail to each member at least seven (7) days in advance of a meeting of Lot owners or posted in a conspicuous place in the community at least forty eight (48) hours in advance of a meeting, except in an emergency.

- Section 10. <u>Vote of Directors</u>. Directors may not vote by proxy or secret ballot at Board meetings except that secret ballots may be used in the election of officers.
- Section 11. <u>Minutes</u>. Minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors and of the Lot owners shall be kept in a businesslike manner and available for inspection by unit owners and Board members at all reasonable times.
- Section 12. <u>Quorum</u>. At all meetings of the Board of Directors a majority of the directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the acts of the majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the acts of the Board of Directors. If at any meeting of the Board of Directors there is less than a quorum present, the majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time.
- Section 13. <u>Fidelity Bonds</u>. The Board of Directors may require that all officers and employees of the Association handling or responsible for Association funds shall furnish adequate fidelity bonds. The premiums of such bonds shall be paid by the Association.
- Section 14. <u>Designation of Officer</u>. The principal officers of the Association shall be a President, a Vice President, a Secretary and a Treasurer, all of whom shall be elected by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may appoint an Assistant Treasurer and an Assistant Secretary, and such other officers as in their judgment may be necessary.
- Section 15. <u>Election of Officers</u>. The officers of the Association shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at the organization meeting of each new Board, and shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board.
- Section 16. <u>Removal of Officers</u>. Upon an affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Board of Directors, any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, and his successor elected at any regular meeting of the Board of Directors, or at any special meeting of the Board called for such purpose.
- Section 17. <u>President</u>. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Association. He shall preside at all meetings of the Association and of the Board of Directors. He shall have all of the general powers and duties which are usually vested in the office of President of the Association.
- Section 18. <u>Vice President</u>. The Vice President shall take the place of the President and perform his duties whenever the President shall be absent or unable to act. If neither the President nor the Vice President is able to act, the Board of Directors shall appoint some other member of the Board to do so on an interim basis. The Vice President shall also perform such other duties as shall from time to time be imposed upon him by the Board of Directors.

Section 19. <u>Secretary</u>. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors, and the minutes of all meetings of the Association; he shall have charge of such books and papers as the Board of Directors may direct; and he shall, in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of Secretary.

Section 20. <u>Treasurer</u>. The Treasurer shall have responsibility for Association funds and securities, and shall be responsible for keeping full and accurate accounts of all receipts and disbursements in books belonging to the Association. He shall be responsible for the deposit of all monies and other valuable effects in the name, and to the credit, of the Association in such depositories as may from time to time be designated by the Board of Directors.

## Article V - Assessment And Collection Of Common Expenses

As more fully provided in the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions, each lot owner is obligated to pay to the Association annual and special assessments which are secured by a continuing lien against the Lot against which is made, which lien is in favor of the Association and shall come into effect upon recordation of the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions. Said lien shall secure not only unpaid, delinquent assessments, but also reasonable attorney's fees and other costs of collecting assessments and interest at the highest lawful rate. Said lien shall date back to the date of recording of the Declaration of Covenant, Conditions and Restrictions and shall be prior to the creation of any homestead status or subsequent lien or encumbrance, except that said lien shall be subordinate and inferior to that of any institutional first mortgage lender.

## Article VI - Annual Budget

Pursuant to Article IV, section 2, paragraph b. of these Bylaws, the Board of Directors shall have the power and duty of preparing and adopting an annual operating budget for the Association. Each Lot owner shall be given written notice of the time and place at which the meeting at which the budget will be considered shall be held, and such meeting shall be open to the Lot owners. If a budget is adopted by the Board of Directors which requires assessment against the Lot owners in any fiscal or calendar year exceeding one hundred fifteen per cent (115%) of such assessments for the preceding year, upon written application of ten per cent (10%) of the Lot owners, a special meeting of the Lot owners shall be held upon not less than ten (10) days' written notice to each Lot owner, but within thirty (30) days of the delivery of such application to the Board of Directors or any member thereof, at which special meeting Lot owners may consider and enact a revision of the budget, or recall any and all members of the Board of Directors and elect their successors. In either case, the revision of the budget or the recall of any and all members of the Board of Directors shall require a vote of not less than twothirds (2/3) of each Class of members of the Association. In determining whether assessments exceed one hundred fifteen per cent (115%) of similar assessments in prior years, there shall be excluded in the computation any provision for reasonable reserves made by the Board of Directors in respect of repair or replacement of the property or in respect of anticipated expenses by the Association which were not anticipated to be incurred on a regular or annual basis. There shall also be excluded from such computation assessments for betterments to the property. An

example of this procedure is if a previous year's assessments for a Lot were \$150.00 per year, then the assessment may increase to \$172.50 per year by Board of Directors action alone.

The proposed annual budget shall be detailed and shall show the amounts budgeted by accounts and expense classifications.

## Article VII - Amendment of Bylaws

The Bylaws of the Association may be modified, amended or revoked, unless specifically prohibited elsewhere herein, at any regular or special meeting of the members of the Association by not less than seventy-five percent (75%) of the votes of the entire membership of the Association, provided that no less than fourteen (14) days' notice of said meeting has been given to the members of the Association, which notice contained a full statement of the proposed modification, change or revocation.

The foregoing were adopted as the Bylaws of Lost River Preserve Property Owners' Association, a corporation not for profit under the Laws of the State of Florida, at the first meeting of the Board of Directors on \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_, 2002.

G:\DEW\LOST RIVER PRESERVE\Homeowners Asen Bylaws.doc

יים ליכול על החל עי דובו או הוא זו או לה לוכל על אלו על אלו על חלול או לחלו לכל לחלו א

This instrument was prepared by and should be returned to: S. Ketherine Frazier, Esquire, of Hill, Ward & Henderson, P.A. Esnik of America Plaza, Suite 3700 101 Esni Kennedy Boulevard Tampa, Florida 33602

## INSTR # 2005454045 O BK 15585 PG 0040

Pgs 0040 - 44; (5pgs)
RECORDED 10/01/2005 03:58:23 PM
PRT FRANK CLERK OF COURT
HILLSBORDUSH COUNTY
DEPUTY CLERK 8 Laguns

# FIRST AMENDMENT AND SUPPLEMENT TO DECLARATION OF COVENANTS. CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS OF LOST RIVER PRESERVE

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT AND SUPPLEMENT TO DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS OF LOST RIVER PRESERVE (the "First Amendment") is made and entered into as of September 20, 2005, by LOST RIVER PRESERVE, LLC, a Florida limited liability company (the "Developer").

#### RECITALS

- Developer executed that certain Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions dated March 27, 2002, as recorded in Official Records Book 11521, at Page 598, of the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida (the "Declaration"), which Declaration encumbers that certain Property situated in Hillsborough County, Florida, as more particularly described in the Declaration;
- B. The Southwest Florida Water Management District ("SWFWMD") has promulgated an Environmental Resource Permitting (ERF) Information Manual which includes Part B stipulating the Basis of Review for 40D Rules (the Manual and Part B collectively are hereinsfor referred to as the "SWFWMD Regulations") which are applicable to the Property, including, without limitation, Section 2.6.2.2.5, which requires certain declarations of protective covenants to provide certain terms as a part of said declarations;
- C. Pursuant to the SWFWMD Regulations, SWFWMD requires Developer to amend the Declaration to include the terms provided in Section 2.6.2.2.6 of the SWFWMD Regulations;
- D. Pursuant to the terms of Article XIII Sections 3(iv) and 10 of the Declaration, Developer desires to record this First Amendment as a Special Amendment in order to amend the Declaration to conform to the SWFWMD Regulations subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein; and
- E. In addition, pursuant to Article XIII Section 4 of the Declaration, Developer desires to make additional real property (the "Additional Land"), a legal description of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and by this reference made part hereof, subject to all the terms of the Declaration and to bring the Additional Land within the jurisdiction and control of the Association pursuant to Article XIII Section 4 of the Declaration subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the covenants herein contained, Developer acknowledges and agrees as follows.

#### AGREEMENTS

- Recitals. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by
  this reference. All defined terms used herein shall have the same meaning as given in the
  Declaration, unless otherwise defined herein.
- 2. Additional Land: Association Control: The terms of the Covenants and Restrictions of the Declaration are hereby extended to the Additional Land. The Additional Land is hereby brought within the jurisdiction and control of the Association and made subject to the Declaration and shall hereby and hereafter be included within the term "Property" as used in the Declaration.
- 3. Surface Water Management System. The following is hereby added as Article XIV to the Declaration and is entitled "ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS WITH RESPECT TO SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM."
  - "Section 1. <u>Definitions</u>, "Surface Water Management System Facilities" shell include, but are not limited to: all intets, ditches, swales cuiverts, water control structures, retention and detention areas, pends, lakes, floodplain compensation areas, wetlands and any associated buffer areas, and wetland mitigation areas, as applicable, located on the Property.
  - Section 2. <u>Location</u>. The Surface Water Management System Facilities are located on land that is designated Common Property on the Plat, are located on land that is owned by the Association, or are located on land that is subject to an essement in favor of the Association and its successors.
  - Section 3. <u>Construction</u>. Except as otherwise provided in this Section 8, no construction activities may be conducted relative to any portion of the Surface Water Management System Facilities. Prohibited activities include, but are not limited to: digging or excavation; depositing fill, debrie or any other material or item; constructing or altering any water control structure; or any other construction to modify the Surface Water Management System Facilities. The Property does not include a walland mitigation area as defined in section 1.7.24 of the SWFWMD Regulations; provided, however, with respect to the wet detention pond located on the Property, no vegetation within such wet detention pond shall be removed, cut, trimmed or sprayed with herbioide without specific written approval from SWFWMD. Construction and maintenance activities which are consistent with the design and permit conditions approved by SWFWMD in the Environmental Resource Permit to be issued pursuant to application number 43008689.003 (the "Environmental Resource Permit") may be conducted without specific written approval from SWFWMD.
  - Section 4. Operation and Maintenance. The Association shall be responsible for operation and maintenance of the Surface Water Management System Facilities. Operation and maintenance and reinspection reporting shall be performed in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Environmental Resource Permit.

Association Membership. Pursuant to and in accordance with Article V Section 1 of the Declaration, all the Homeowners shall be members of the Association.

Section 6. Assessments for the Surface Water Management System Facilities. Any and all costs associated with the operation, maintenance and replacement of the Surface Water Management System Facilities shall be included with the basic and general expenses of the Association described in Article VI Section 1, and shall be paid by members of the Association and controlled, managed, maintained, repaired, kept up, and replaced by the Association as provided and in accordance with Articles VI-VIII of

Section 7. Enforcement. SWFWMD shall have the right to take enforcement measures. including a civil action for injunction and/or penalties, against the Association to compal the Association to correct any outstanding conditions not in compilance with the Surface Water Management System Facilities.

Section 8. Responsibility of Persons other than the Association if the Association causes to exist, all of the Lot owners, Unit owners or Homeowners that be jointly and severally responsible for operation and maintenance of the Surface Water Management System Facilities in accordance with the requirements of the Environmental Resource Permit, unless and until an appropriate governmental unit, public utility, or non-profit corporation similar to the Association assumes responsibility for the operation and maintenance of the Surface Water Management System Facilities."

- 4. <u>Amendment Subject to Approval.</u> Pursuant to Article XIII Section 10 of the Declaration, Declarant hereby confirms receipt of SWFWMD's prior approval to this Past
- 6. Ratification. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this First Amendment, the ... Declaration shall remain in full force and effect and is hereby ratified and confirmed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Developer has executed this First Amendment the date and year first written above.

Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of:

DECLARANT

LOST RIVER PRESERVE, LLC. a Florida limited liability company

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF HILLSBOROUGH

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 30 day of 1911 Mey 2005, by William W. Casey, as President of Lost River Preserve, LLC, a Fibrida limited liability company, on behalf of the company. He is personally known to me or produced Fi drive heart as identification.

Notary Public

(Notary Seal)

(Type, print or stamp name)

My Commission expires:

Michelle Process
MY COMMERCE & DOZDAG BOYES
June 5, 2007
RONOED SENTED FRANCES AC

#### EXHIBIT A

#### LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

A parcel of land lying in Sections 14 and 15, Township 32 South, Range 18 East, Hillsborough County, Florida, explicitly described as follows:

Commence at the northeast corner of the West 1/4 of said Section 14; thence on the east boundary thereof \$00°09'54\*W, a distance of 32.94 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; thence continue on said east boundary \$00°09°54"W, a distance of 5333.25 feet to the southeast corner of the West 1/4of said Section 14; thence on the south boundary thereof N89°23'40"W, a distance of 1343,58 feet to the southwest corner of said Section 14 the same being the southeast corner of aforesaid Section 15; themse on the south boundary thereof 889°37'35" W, a distance of 2640.23 feet; thence continue on said south boundary S89°44'10"W, a distance of 2204.53 feet to the boundary of LOST RIVER PRESERVE PHASE I as, recorded in Plat Book 92, Page 72 of the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida; thence on said boundary the following four (4) courses (1) thence N00°23'08"W, a distance of 235.42 feet; (2) thence N45°12'21"E, a distance of 3170.19 feet; (3) thence N00°06'44"W, a distance of 175.00 feet to the beginning of a curve concave southwesterly having a radius of 25.00 feet and a central angle of 90°00'00"; (4) thence on the arc of said curve a distance of 39.27 feet, said are subtended by a chord which bears N45°06'44"W a distance of 35.36 feet to the right-of-way of Gulf City Road; thence on said right-of-way the following six (6) courses: (1) thence NB9\*53'16"E; a distance of 2131.53 feet to a point on a curve concave northwesterly having a radius of 605.21 feet and a central angle of 33°08'26";(2) thence on the arc of said curve a distance of 350.06 feet, said are subtended by a chord which bears N75°07'56"E a distance of 345.20 feet to a point on a curve concave northwesterly having a radius of 470.26 feet and a central angle of 49°58'17";(3) thence on the are of said curve a distance of 410.14 feet, said are subtended by a chord which bears N24°23'40"E a distance of 397,27 feet; (4) thence N00°57'14"E, a distance of 1815.30 feet to a point on a curve concave southeasterly having a radius of 400.00 feet and a central angle of 79°51'19"; (5) thenes on the arc of said curve a distance of 557.49 foot, said are subtended by a chord which bears N38°20'42"E a distance of 513.46 feet; (6) thence N89°42'18"E, a distance of 1002.43 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

#### AND

A parcel of land lying in Sections 14 and 15, Township 32 South, Range 18 East, Hillsborough County, Florida, explicitly described as follows:

Commence at the northeast corner of said Section 15; thence on the north boundary thereof \$89°51'32"W, a distance of 178.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; thence \$00°08'28"E, a distance of 24.76 feet; thence N89°51'32"B, a distance of 387.23 feet to the westerly right-of-way line of Gulf City Road and a point on a curve concave southeasterly having a radius of 450.00 feet and a central angle of 63°51'57"; thence on said right-of-way line and on the arc of said curve a distance of 501.60 feet, said arc subtended by a chord which bears \$30°21'01"W a distance of 476.03' feet; thence continue on said right-of-way line \$00°57'14"W, a distance of 428.10 feet to the northeast corner of LOST RIVER PRESERVE PHASE I as recorded in Plat Book 92, Page 72 of the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida; thence on the north boundary thereof N89°02'46"W, a distance of 264.88 feet; thence N00°57'14"E, a distance of \$56.94 feet to the aforesaid north boundary of said Section 15 N89°51'32"E, a distance of 1 10.98 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.